LINCOLN COUNTY
LIBRARY DISTRICT

Lincoln County Library District Board

Regular Meeting

Tuesday January 19, 2021

12:00 p.m.
Online
Agenda

Call Regular Meeting to Order President
Call Roll and Establish Quorum Director
Approval of the Agenda President
Topic Lead Purpose Outcome
Public Comment President Anyone may speak at

this time
Minutes President Approval
Board Meeting Minutes
December 8, 2020
Reports
Board Reports Board Members Information
Director's Report Director Information
Financial Report Director Acceptance
Old Business
Director Self Evaluation Director Discussion
Intergovernmental Director Discussion
Agreements between
Cities and LCLD
Strategic Plan Update Director Approval
New Business
LSTA Grant Application Director Approval
Introduce Policies on Director Discussion
Contracting and Financial
Management
Next District Board Information
Meeting
February 9,2021, noon
LCLD Administrative
Office OR Online
Adjourn President Motion







Minutes
Lincoln County Library District
Board Meeting
December 8, 2020
12:00 p.m.
Online

ATTENDANCE—BOARD
Chris Boyle

Brian Fodness

Emily Portwood-ABSENT
Virginia Tardaewether
Marta West

ATTENDANCE—STAFF
MaryKay Dahlgreen, District Director

CALLTO ORDER
Board President, Brian Fodness, called the meeting to order at 12:05 p.m.

CALL THE ROLL AND ESTABLISH QUORUM
Quorum was established.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Approved

PUBLIC COMMENT
There was none.

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
Marta moved and Chris seconded approval of the Regular Board minutes of November 10,
2020. Passed unanimously.

BOARD REPORTS
Concern was expressed for not having heard from Emily Portwood for several months.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Back to doing curbside in Siletz and our partner libraries due to the elevation in risk of Covid-19
infection. Toledo Public Library has been providing a service called Book Bundles, library staff
collect a variety of materials for patrons who request it.

Urban Growth Boundary change included in packet. Just for awareness in case there are
annexations that will reduce our tax receipts.



Board approved LCLD being fiscal agent for Waldport Public Library’s CARES Act Grant and they
have new video equipment.

MaryKay Dahlgreen thanked the Board again for continuing to pay salaries during the
pandemic.

The Grinch (aka MaryKay) will return to the Waldport Public Library online this year and will
also appear in a Zoom meeting with Shangri La clients.

FINANCIAL REPORT

We are on track with our revenue and expenditures. We received the majority of our 2020-
2021 tax receipts in November. A comparison with last year’s tax receipts and the 2020-2021
Adopted Budget shows that we are on track to receive expected tax receipts. Need to look at
OCLC payments, they seem higher than was budgeted. Chris moved and Virginia seconded
acceptance of the financial report. Passed unanimously.

OLD BUSINESS

Intergovernmental Agreements between Cities and LCLD

Thanks to Marta for creating a new draft. There was a discussion of including the payment
schedule in the IGA and it was agreed to keep it in the draft. Change distribution date to
December 31% to allow for Board approval at the December meeting. Changed effective date to
July 1, 2021 so it is aligned with our fiscal year. We will make it available to the cities in January
for review and signature. It will be sent to Wayne Belmont, Lincoln County; SDAO; and legal
counsel recommended by library district colleagues for review. MaryKay and Brian will create a
cover letter for sending with the IGA to the city managers that outlines how we plan to move
forward with the IGA. We need to be sure to calendar the timeline so that it can be reviewed by
the Board each year. There was discussion where to include the requirement that funds won’t
be distributed if the IGA is not signed. Marta will make corrections and additions discussed then
MaryKay will send to legal counsel for review so we can put in the hands of city managers in
early January. It was also suggested that we put something in that makes it clear that this
superscedes any previous signed agreement. We also need a provision that requires the funds
to be separated from the municipalities general fund. Marta will provide an updated draft and
MaryKay will send to legal counsel. In January the IGA will be provided to the cities for
signature. Chris moved that MaryKay take the updated draft of the IGA to Wayne Belmont,
SDAO and private legal counsel and share with library directors (not for distribution). Marta
seconded. Passed unanimously.

Human Resources Document Review

Included in the packet is a performance management plan, evaluation and self-evaluation
forms, and best practices for self-review. MaryKay suggested evaluating her with this process.
Board wants to set realistic goals. MaryKay will do a self-assessment based on progress towards
goals outlined in the October Board Meeting Director’s Report to Board by early January. Then
the Board will receive completed self-assessment, form for supervisor evaluation, and updated
progress towards goals and make notes for discussion at the February meeting. After the
February meeting Brian will complete the written evaluation based on the discussion at the
February meeting.

2



Progress on Strategic Plan

MaryKay talked with Darci Hanning from the State Library about goals and objectives around
the focus areas. They will continue to discuss and MaryKay will provide a draft of goals and
objectives for the January meeting and will present final plan at the February Board meeting.

NEW BUSINESS

Tax Distribution to Partner Libraries

Included in the Board Packet is the worksheet for distribution of the 2020-2021 tax receipts to
partner libraries. The statistics are based on data from 2018-2019 so don’t reflect the pandemic
statistics. There was a discussion about waiting on the new IGA until we have a new
reimbursement formula. There was also a discussion about changing the formula in the next
year from circulation/expenditures to service area. Virginia moved and Marta seconded
approval of the 2020-2021 tax distribution to partner libraries. The December distribution will
be delivered the week of December 21, 2020.

GOOD OF THE ORDER
MaryKay requested that the January 12, 2021 Board meeting be moved to January 19, 2021.
Board agreed.

NEXT DISTRICT BOARD MEETING
Tuesday January 19, 2021 at noon at the District Office, 141 NW 11", Newport or online.

ADJOURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m.






LINCOLN COUNTY
LIBRARY DISTRICT

District Librarian’s Report
January 2021

General Updates
The Siletz Library is currently closed for in-person use but is still offering curbside service
four days a week. This will continue indefinitely. The same is true of our partner
libraries: Newport, Lincoln City, Toledo, and Waldport.

The first one-half of our annual payments to partner libraries for providing service to
LCLD residents has been delivered. The libraries will receive the other half in six
payments over the next six months.

We are entering budget season. The Oregon Department of Revenue has set up budget
trainings to be delivered virtually. | have registered for all four; two in February, one in
March, and one in May. | will be presenting the budget calendar at the February Board
meeting and also at the meeting, a budget officer needs to be appointed by the Board.

Successes
The Director was able to attend the Research in Public Libraries Institute virtually in
December. It was a very valuable experience and the sessions that had the most impact
were those on equitable community evaluation and “telling your story” using data.
There were several other librarians from Oregon who attended, and we have scheduled
follow up meetings with one another.

The Director provided an online Grinch story time for the Waldport Public Library and
for the clients of Shangri La who participate in day programming.



The Newport Library Foundation offered to expand their annual Newport Reads to
Lincoln County Reads. The book selected is Circe by Madeline Miller and she has been
contacted to provide an online presentation in April about the book. We will be working
with Siletz, Toledo, Waldport, Newport, Driftwood, OCCC Library, and the Guin Library
at the Marine Science Center to promote the event and provide copies of Circe for
Lincoln County residents to read. This is a pilot project; we are hoping it is successful so
we can provide these programs together in the future.

Upcoming

January 29, 2021 the Public Library Division of the Oregon Library Association will be
presenting the Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion Toolkit they have been working on. | will
attend that virtual meeting

February 3 & 4, 2021 the SDAO will host the virtual annual conference.

Libraries will be closed on Monday January 18, 2021 in honor of Martin Luther King Jrs.

Birthday and will be closed on Monday February 15, 2021 in celebration of President’s
Day.



t Jo T 98eq

00°LE6'T S TELTOrT $ 0L7T0S S 5924 ||0JARd 0SZS
00000ST  $ | TU'86L'YT $| 79168 $ | saxe_ ||oJAed 00ZS
00869087 78'891'€91 $ 8T°L0T'LY $ saSeM pue saLie[es 00TS
| [ ” S9JIAIDS [9UUO0SIDd 000S
saJnjipuadx3
00°EZV'V09'T $ 90°TLS‘TVET $ LS'TES'VTS $ sanuanay e30L
00T66'66T S puUeH UQ ysed ajqe|ieny
FERIDVELN
[ oozev'vor't $ 90'TLS TVE'T $ LS°ZE9'VTS $ sanuanay 000V [eI0L
00000t $ | s2°0509 $ | 00°000°T $ ~ 9WO0DU| SNOBUE|RISIIAl 0061
00°000'T $ vr'eze $ 07'0€T s aWodU| 159.91u| 008Y
00°'£05'80€'T $ LEVYT'69T'T $ SE'GETTTS $ 1Z/0T - anuanay xel Auadoud 0T
B 9€'Z0EVT $ €9°2LTY $ 02/6T - anuanay xe] Auadoud €0TY
06'STE9 $ vL70V'T $ 6T/8T @nuanay xe[ Auadoid ZOTY |
- | SSTOS'E $ | - 8T/LT - 3nuanay xeL Aliadoid TOTY
| 06°€55'Y $ | LT/9T anuanay xe| Aladold 00Ty
000000T  $ 96'€97°8 S| - Ansai104 33835 060
- | 00°00s $ | o000z % S - Snoaue|jadsIN-ZId|IS Y80V
| 00'ST $ | 1S2U9UI-219)IS €80Y |
000007 $ | ] - 23315 40 AWD-Z131IS Z80Y
Jano-A11e)-739)IS T8O
] - 233|1S 080%
0000ty 3 00'66€Y $ 00'66€% $ 1ue.D peay 0} Apeay 0L0
0000007  $ €V'8LS'T $ S9°68T'T $ saxe| painal Ajsnoinald 090t
|oooo0er  $| | o6'8z8TT $ Adeigr me1 AunoD ujoour osoy |
Aseuaqry uoneurSew| uolied Ajjoq 0oy
0000072 $ |  om3aN Aseuqr] joounyd 0Zov
S3INUIASY 000D
SONUIAIY
138png |enuuy |enioy ajeq 0} Jea) [eN}oY poliad uaiin)

020Z ALA4 Pue 0zZ0Z 49qwadaq Jo4

siseq yse) - saJn}puadx3 pue ssnudAdY JO JUDWIIIL]S

PUIsIg Areaqiy Ayuno) ujooury




7 J0 z 98ed

00°005 $ | OT'6€ $ ] | saljddns 8019
000007  $ 18'80€'T $ 30UBUBIUIE LOTY
| oo000's  $ 0E'LY6 $ ¥£°80C $ 1an3 9019
_ ) ._ | SUBASOT9
00vS6'E  $ (ELTOY $ | 1T ~ sayddns 00T9
) B a8eq.en 4101 1809
00809T 3 78'79L $ LEET $ 19uJ3)u] pue auoydajaL 0809
0000Z'9T  $ 000018 $ 00'0SE'T $ W3y 6209
T - ) SeD 8£09
00°005°T $ sajjddng pue dueudjuIBN ££09
| ) ) ApuPa3 9209
SI1|1N PUe JUY S£09
000000 $ 00009 $ 00°00T $ suolefoy d1lqnd 0£09
000006 $ S|BLI21BAl [BUOISS2J01d 5909
000007 | | 10961 - $ | ) ) ) afe1sod 0909 |
000509  § | 0sLESY $ ) ) a11-2v209509
Jaluno) aduel||v =pedsed siIqu0 5509
00000 $ | ] a8e3|IN 0509
00'889'C $ | 96'9TLT $ 413 $ | asea Jaido) 0109
0000STZ  $ ) - | suoBN|oS JAIEMAE 9E09 |
9T'EIT'T $ 00'99 $ | sasUadx3 UI|UQ EE09
S6'LES $ B wawdinb3 22140 z€09
g $ | 8666 $| sajddns 2dWO TE09 |
sasuadx3 92140 |esduds 0E09
STTIL'E s 00°0SY $ S20|AIS [EUO]SS3J01d 0TO9 [E301
00°08Y $ $92IAI3S [B42UBD HTO9
| oo000't $ ) ) s21M3S LI €109
00°000'T $ | $901AI3S 8837 £T09
00000€T ¢ szisre ¢ 00°0SY $| sa01AJ35 SUUN0DY TT09
$321A19S |BUOISS®)04d OT09
1 R $32IAI3S PUE S|ELIBIBIN 0009
1 TOTLSYT $ S8'87E'T $ slyeuag aahojdwi3 00€S [el0L |
00898TT  $| | TE6E6'S $| 16'686 $ S)joUag JUIWRIIRY OTES
0092sLT  $ | | 691E9'8 s |eeseeT $ ) suyauag YI|edH SOES |
syjjouag aako|dwy 00ES
19'8ZL6LT $| 25°005'1S $ S|AI3S [2UUOSI3d 000S [E01
133png |enuuy | [enmyoy 3je(Q 0} Jed\ |en3dy pouad Juaiin)




¥ 40 ¢ adeq

00°0SS $ YEOLT $ L1'S8 S wuely 233)1S 0959
00°SZ8 $ | ezver $ | | 96°201 $ | : seo 2191 6559
00'0SL'T $ 6€°556 $ 67°6ST $ aUOYd pUE JaUIIU| Z33|IS 8GS9
| 000zz't $ |otrvse 8 7805 $ “9sea Ja1do) 23)IS £559
| 00°SST'T $ | 00'9zs $ | | o096 $ 13M3S/121eM TI3|1S 9559
| oo0ss'y $ 78°'100'C $ 86'VET $ | R 1swdojaAsg UoNI||0D 7I3IS S559
| 00°002°C $ 12'806 $ 98'59T $ APL3|I 33|15 7559 |
00'000°T $ 69'8€€ $ | 00'C $ 921195 pue sa1ddns ‘s|euale N TSS9
._ | m 219)1S 0559
B TLSE9'Y $ - $ saseqeieq auljuQ §zS9 [e30L
(3sonD ageniaH) 1sanpoud 8759
TLSE9Y S (aa11p1anQ) 09zAIRIgN 9259
00°0059 $ | _ - saseqeleq auluQ §Z59
- $ soueaqr] [e207 Moddns 1Zsg eloL
. 00°00V'v ml - - swesSo.1d Suipeay Jawwns $zs9
) B o o (Aseiqn ‘Sew) uopeq Ajjoq) 193014 [e3ds €259
- ] i ] - sonelqI] [e207 Moddns T7S9
= wawdojansg Alelq 0Zs9 |
SE'99/°CE $ 0E'STY'E $ | @douasajey/ueoy Asesqiuaiul/3uisojere) 1S9 jerol
0000165  $ | SE'99L'TE $ 0E'STH'E $ 9100 1159
3Jualaey/ueo] Aesqiaul/3uiBoleie) 0TS9
B 00'658'v£8 S | ) B N o $30IAIBS AJeiqI PalIeAUo) 5059
| o 1wswdojaaag AelgiiAusawasinguiay 00S9
vL°68L S - S | duesnsul/saag Suneiadp |er0)
00'009T S| v1°68L $ ) _ s20nON [eF37 0ER9
[ oo0000' $ o [T $994 UONI3|3 0TH9
000009 S adueInsu| ssauisng 0Tv9
_ 3duelnsu|/saz4 Sunessdo 009
| 0T'€82'T S : S diysiaquiay/3ujutel) /j9nea) 0OEI 0301
| oo00S9  $ 1 0099 $ . BuIsnoH /sjean/[aneaL ZZ€9
- | oo00s‘9 $ | oo'gzI $ ) uonens|say TZE9
[2Aea} /Buluiel | Juoneaisiday Q79
00000 S| | 07'680°T $ s394 diyssaquiaIN OTE9
diysiaquia|y/Suutes /janel) 00€9
18'795°0C $ S6°762'T $ sasuadx3 3210 |e4aua9 OE0I 2301
_. v4'802 $ suep SOT9 [e301
| 198png |enuuy |{enjdy aleq 03 Jeap [en1dyY polad Jualin)




¥ Jo v 98ed

00'€2V'¥09'T S | t1°528°T0L S| $9'T/S'861 $ sainypuadxy |e30L
00'te1'8¢C S asue|eg Suipu3 paleudoiddeun
00'St.LC8 S AauaBunuo) Sunesado
Aeano |exde) 000L |e30L
00'000'09  $| | ) ) B Juswade|day UeA TTOL
awdinb3 pue ainjuing YO OTOL
: - ) : ) Aepng |ende) 000L
| | asuadx3 paziioSaieaun
] 9t°'S25'L0S ml wN.an.Swv ] S3JIAI3S pue sjelia1e|Al 0009 |B10L
0L°'96 S S6'ST S s394 13 sadJey) yueg 009
00°L2V'LEY S 00°'L2Y'LEY S Juswasinquiay Aseuqi [eiol
00't0L L6 S 00'v0L'L6 S 1odplem
| 00'€65'6E $ 00'€65'6€ $ opajoL
| 00°'£99°6LT S _ 00'£99°64T S Hodman
| 00°€9t‘0CT S 00°€9Y°0¢CT S AuD ujooury
_ uRWaIsInquitay Aleiqii 0099
TY"LESOT S 80°TIT'T S juawdojanaqg Ateiqi] 0ZS9 [e10L
. 691029 S | 80°'TYTT S Z19]!S 0SS9 |eloL
0002LY S o _ R | ~ npasn 71315 €959
00°000'T S 06'79¢ S n aoueualulely 13 Jleday 219)1S 7959
oo.moc.H S 10°0st S 00'LTE R S Suiuweudold z191S 1959
uowmsm [enuuy [en)dy e 03 JBdA |enidy polad uaun)




AGENDA ITEM 1/19/2020
Intergovernmental Agreement Between Cities and LCLD

Background and Summary

The Board has agreed that there is a need to update the agreements between the
city libraries and LCLD outlining expectations and responsibilities of each party. At
the last meeting it was decided to send the IGA to legal counsel. Eileen Eakins,
Northwest Local Government Legal Advisors has reviewed and revised the draft
agreement.

Recommendation of the Director
Discussion revisions and update timeline for distribution to cities.






AGENDA ITEM 1/19/2021
Progress on Strategic Plan

Background and Summary

LCLD is in the process of creating a strategic plan. The director will provide draft
goals and objectives to the Board for discussion.

Recommendation of the Director
Approve goals and objectives.






AGENDA ITEM 1/19/2021
LSTA Grant Application

Background and Summary

After discussion with our partner libraries, | have decided to suspend the process
for obtaining an integrated library system that can be shared across all Lincoln
County libraries. There are several library systems we are close to or contiguous
with whom it may be advantageous to partner to improve access to library
materials and services for our patrons. | have contacted a library technology
consultant who is currently consulting with the Tillamook County Library about
their technology. He and | will speak on January 14, 2021 so he can give me some
idea of the cost of hiring such a consultant. My plan is to write a grant proposal to
the State Library of Oregon for Library Services and Technology Act funds for a
feasibility study on the best approach for LCLD and the Lincoln County Libraries to
share an integrated library system. This will allow for us to study our options and
find the best on for LCLD libraries. The grant is due on February 4, 2021.

Recommendation of the Director
Approve writing and submitting an LSTA Grant to the State Library of Oregon for
funding in July 2021.






AGENDA ITEM 1/19/2021
Introduce Draft Contracting and Financial Management Policies

Background and Summary

The contracting and financial management policies for LCLD are out of date. The
Director has drafted an update of those policies based best practice. They will be
introduced for discussion at this Board meeting and will be on the agenda for final
approval at the February 9™ meeting per Board By-Laws:

The by-laws may be amended by the majority vote of all members of the Board of Directors, provided
written notice of the proposed amendment shall have been mailed or emailed to all members at least
10 days prior to the meeting at which such action is proposed to be taken.






LINCOLN COUNTY
LIBRARY DISTRICT

Contracting Policy

Lincoln County Library District (LCLD) follows the Oregon Model Public Contracting Rules (ORS
279A.065) when purchasing goods and services and for construction projects, subject to the
additions or exceptions provided in this policy.

1. Local Contract Review Board Except when otherwise provided in LCLD policies, the powers
and duties of the Local Contract Review Board (LCRB) under the Public Contracting Codé shall
be exercised and performed by the LCLD Board of Directors.

2. Delegation of Contracting Authority Unless expressly limited by the Local Contract Review
Board or LCLD policies, all powers and duties given or assigned to contract agencies by the
Public Contracting Code may be exercised or performed by the board president, district
director, or his/her designee, including the authority to enter into emergency contract pursuant
to ORS 279B.080 and 279C.320(1).

3. Personal Services Contracts Personal services shall be defined to include those services that
require specialized technical, creative, professional, or communication skills or talents, unique
and specialized knowledge, or the exercise of discretionary judgment, and for which the quality
of the service depends on attributes that are unique to the service provider. Such services shall
include, but are not limited to: architects, engineers, surveyors, attorneys, accountants,
auditors, computer programmers, artists, designers, performers, and consultants. The district
director or his/her designee shall have the authority to determine whether a particular service
is a "personal service" under this definition.

Personal service contracts do not require a competitive bidding process. When screening or
selecting a personal service contractor, the district will consider qualifications, performance
history, expertise, knowledge, creativity, and the ability to exercise sound judgment. The
selection is based primarily on these factors rather than price.

Unless otherwise provided in this section, contracts for architectural, engineering,
photogrammetric mapping, transportation planning or land surveying services shall be awarded
according to ORS 279C.110(3). A contract for architectural, engineering, photogrammetric
mapping, transportation planning or land surveying services may be entered into by direct
appointment if such contract is estimated not to exceed $45,000 in a fiscal year, or if the
project described in the contract consists of work that has been substantially described,

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board



planned or otherwise previously studied or rendered in an earlier contract with the consultant
that was awarded under this policy, and the new contract is a continuation of that project.

4. Sole Source Procurement When necessary, the district's Local Contract Review Board, district
director, or his/her designee may enter into a sole source procurement pursuant to ORS
279B.075.

5. Electronic Advertising Pursuant to ORS 279C.360 and ORS 279B.055C(4c), electronic
advertisement of public contracts in lieu of newspaper publication is authorized when it is cost
effective to do so. The board president, district director, or designee shall have the authority
determine when electronic publication is appropriate, and consistent with the district’s public
contracting policies (OAR 137-47-0270(3)).

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board



LINCOLN COUNTY
LIBRARY DISTRICT

Financial Management Policy

l. Introduction

These guidelines are designed to:
e Protect the assets of the LCLD;
e Ensure the maintenance of accurate records of the LCLD’s financial activities;
e Provide a framework of operating standards and behavioral expectations; and,
e Ensure compliance with federal, state and local legal reporting requirements

Exceptions to written policies may only be made with the prior approval of the Board of
Trustees. Changes or amendments to these policies may be approved by the Board of Trustees
at any time. All personnel with financial responsibilities are expected to be familiar with and
operate within the parameters of these policies.

. Accounting

The LCLD's accounting system shall be designed specifically to:

Assemble information on all finance-related transactions and events.

Provide the ability to analyze all data collected.

Classify data according to the chart of accounts.

Record data in the appropriate books of accounts.

Report data to management and outside parties in an appropriate format and in a
timely manner.

Maintain accountability of assets.

¢ Retain data according to the State of Oregon's retention schedule for special districts.

The accounting system shall include:

s A general ledger.

e Subsidiary journals as necessary, including revenue, expenditures, and payroll.

e Written documentation supporting, authorizing, and explaining individual financial
transactions including invoices, bank statements, purchase orders, payroll, transfers,
etc.

e Any other data deemed necessary to prepare financial statements.

1. Fraud Prevention

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board



Fraud is defined as a willful or deliberate act with the intention of obtaining an unauthorized
benefit, such as money or property, by deception or other unethical means.

All fraudulent acts or related misconduct are included under this policy and include, but are not
limited to, such activities as:

e Embezzlement, theft, misappropriation or other financial irregularities;

e Forgery or alteration of documents (checks, time sheets, contractor agreements,
purchase orders, other financial documents, electronic files);

e Improprieties in the handling or reporting of financial transactions;

e Misappropriation of funds, securities, supplies, inventory or any other asset (such as
furniture, fixtures, equipment, materials), including assets of the LCLD, patrons,
suppliers, or others with whom there is a business relationship;

e Authorizing or receiving payment for goods not received or services not performed;

e Authorizing or receiving payments for hours not worked or expenses not accrued and
documented;

e Profiteering as a result of insider knowledge of LCLD activities.

Fraud and related misconduct will not be tolerated. Employees found to have participated in
such conduct will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Trustees and employees are expected to use their best efforts to recognize risks and exposures
inherent to their areas of responsibility and to be aware of indications of fraud and related
misconduct. Any Trustee or employee who knows or suspects fraud or related misconduct shall
report that to the President of the Board of Trustees or the District Director.

When fraud or related misconduct is reported, an appropriate investigation and all necessary
action will be undertaken. All investigations of alleged wrongdoing will be conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and LCLD policies/procedures. During or following the
investigation, the Board may choose to consult with legal counsel and take appropriate steps to
minimize recurrence.

Iv. Investment Policy

It is the policy of the LCLD to invest public funds in a manner which will provide the highest
return with the maximum security while meeting cash flow demands.

All investments will conform to all applicable laws and regulations governing the investment of
public funds.

A. Objective
The Primary Objectives of the LCLD’s financial investments are, in priority order:

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board



e Safety of Principal — Safety of principal is the foremost objective. All investments
shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks first to preserve capital and second to
fulfill other investment objectives.

e Liquidity — The LCLD’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable
the LCLD to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably anticipated.

e Return on Investments (Yield) — The LCLD’s investments should generate the highest
available return without sacrificing the first two objectives.

B. Funds
The Board may establish funds for money and securities of the LCLD. All monies from whatever
source derived will be receipted into funds established by the Board under authority of law.

C. Delegation of Authority
The District Director and Board shall implement the investment program and establish
investment procedures consistent with this policy. No person may engage in an investment
transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy.

D. Deposit Requirements
The LCLD’s Board of Trustees shall designate its public depositories. Any eligible financial
institution that has offices within the State of Oregon may become a public depository of the
funds of the Library.

E. Reporting
The District Director shall provide the Board with monthly reports which clearly provide the
following information regarding the investment portfolio:
e types of investment and cash position
e depository institutions,
e principal balances

F. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest
Those involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that
could conflict with the proper execution and management of the Library investment program,
or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions.

G. Electronic Transfers
The following type of transactions may be conducted by electronic transfer between financial
institutions in order to expedite the transfer of funds as well as maximize interest earnings:
e Direct deposit of telecom tax funds and credit card receipts
e Allinvestment transfers for certificates of deposit and savings accounts authorized
by the Board
Payroll for LCLD employees and fees associated with payroll processing
e Health insurance payments for LCLD employees
e Utility payments, Internet and telecom service payments

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board



e Credit card payments

e Other services with a monthly subscription cost or contract payment as approved by
the Board of Trustees

¢ To satisfy long-term bond or debt obligations when required by a depository trust
company

The Board or District Director will maintain appropriate documentation of the transactions so
these may be audited as required by statute.

H. Personal Use of District Assets
Neither the District Director nor any Board member will use or permit the use of LCLD funds,
vehicles, equipment, telephones, materials or property for their own personal benefit or profit.
Neither the District Director nor a Board member will ask or require a LCLD employee to
perform services for the personal benefit or profit of a Board member or the District Director.
The District Director and all Board members will safeguard LCLD property, equipment, moneys
and assets against unauthorized use or removal, as well as from loss due to criminal act or
breach of trust.

I. Segregation of Fiscal Duties and Internal Controls
No one person should control or perform all key aspects of a transaction or financial event.
Segregation of duties is an important internal control activity that helps detect errorsin a
timely manner and deters improper activities. Internal controls instituted by the LCLD will assist
the Board in maintaining adequate fiscal oversight of the expenditure of funds.

V. Control Policies and Procedures

The LCLD follows these policies and procedures to ensure control and an effective accounting
system:

o Allfinancial transactions shall conform to standard accounting procedures and Oregon

Revised Statutes and Administrative Regulations (ORS).

e All transactions are authorized properly.

e Duties are segregated. As much as is practical, no single individual should be able to (1)
authorize a transaction, (2) record the transaction in the accounting system, and (3) take
custody of the assets resulting from the transaction.

Accounting records and documentation are designed and maintained properly.
Access to assets and records is controlled.

Accounting data is reviewed periodically and compared to underlying records.

All financial records are retained and secured in accordance with ORS .

Records no longer required to be retained are destroyed securely.

Payroll records and processing are reviewed periodically.

Physical assets are reviewed periodically and an inventory is maintained.

The District Director shall submit the prior month’s financial report to the Board of
Directors with the packet for the regular monthly meeting.

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board



¢ Financial computer systems shall be maintained in a secure environment, accessed only
by documented/authorized personnel, and regularly maintained to prevent data loss.

e Annual audits shall be performed in compliance with ORS and generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for governmental entities.

VI, Cash and Purchasing
The LCLD shall follow these specific policies for cash and purchasing:

A. Cash disbursement:

e Check-signing authority is limited to the Library Director and every Board Trustee

e Two signatures are required on each check.

o Some regularly-recurring bills and payments may be paid electronically by
the District Director or designee. Bills and payments authorized to be
paid electronically shall be established annually by Board resolution.
Invoices must be retained and reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

Authorization of payment is required by the District Director or designee.
Original invoices shall be attached to checks before signing.
Pre-signing any check is prohibited.
Blank checks are prohibited.
Checks shall be numbered sequentially.
The check stock shall contain security safeguards to prevent fraud.
The check stock shall be secured and use shall be documented.
e Voided checks shall be defaced and retained in the financial records.
e Signature stamps are prohibited.
B. Cash handling
e Deposits shall be performed weekly.
C. Petty Cash handling

e The Petty Cash fund is to be used for small purchases or for purchases to solve
an immediate need when a LCLD-issued credit card is not available or is not
practical to use.

e The LCLD will maintain a Petty Cash fund of $75.00 in a locked space. Only the
District Director and Staff should access these funds. Transactions should be
reimbursed only with a receipt. At any time total cash and receipts will equal
$75.00.

e When cash is low, the District Director can request funds equal to the total
amount of receipts to replenish the Petty Cash fund. The request is made by
submitting the Petty Cash log with receipts to the Accountant.

e The District Director or Board may conduct an unscheduled check of all Petty
Cash funds to insure proper handling.

D. District Director and the Board shall review bank account reconciliations monthly.
E. Available surplus funds may be invested according to ORS with the primary
consideration being the security of public funds.

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board



F. Banking shall be conducted according to ORS and applicable accounting practices.
G. Purchasing
e Original invoices shall be required.
e Employees of the LCLD shall not serve as independent contractors to the LCLD.
¢ Employees of the LCLD shall not accept consideration from an outside entity
while performing LCLD duties.
H. Vacation reserve
e The LCLD shall retain a vacation reserve of at least 75 percent of all employees’
outstanding vacation and holiday accrual.
I. Expenditures approval
¢ The Board shall approve all expenditures for supplies, materials, equipment, or
any contract obligating the LCLD in excess of $3,000 with the following
exceptions:

o Purchase of emergency services or materials which cannot be delayed
until the next Board meeting but exceed $3,000. Such purchases must be
approved by the Board President and comply with ORS.

o Payments of monthly statements, composed of individual invoices not
exceeding $3,000, incurred while conducting regular library business such
as purchasing office supplies, fuel for LCLD vehicles or paying credit card
statements.

o Regular payments on contracts that have been pre-approved by the
Board.

e The District Director shall authorize all expenditures or contracts up to $3,000
except Contracts for legal services.

o Total expenditures within a budgetary fund category (e.g. Materials and
Services) may not exceed the budgeted allocation of that category
without prior approval of the Board.

e LCLD credit card limits are set by the Board when they approve the card use for
personnel.

VII. Credit Cards

The LCLD may utilize credit cards to facilitate a predefined set of small (typically under $1000)
routine purchases of budgeted items, subject to subsequent approval, administered by
employees who are both accountable and responsible for the related transactions subject to
prudent financial controls. As provided by the policy, the District Director is the administrator
of the district credit cards. The District Director follows the policies and procedures set out in
this policy.

The credit card is issued by the bank used by the LCLD. The cards are the property of the LCLD
and are issued to employees by the bank after Board approval. The LCLD credit card shall be
used only to charge official LCLD purchases. Monthly, the billing statements and the purchase

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board



receipts are submitted by cardholders and then reviewed and reconciled by District Director
and sent to the Accountant for payment.

A. Credit Card Limits
Limits will be set for each cardholder by the Board. These may include: a single transaction
purchase limit; Spending limit allowed per day: Spending limit per month; Credit Card spending
limit.

B. Restricted Purchases
The following is a list of restricted purchases:

Examples of Authorized Purchases
Professional Dues

Office and Other Supplies
Conference Registrations & Travel
Equipment Supplies

Event Refreshments
Subscriptions

Repair and Maintenance

Room Rentals

Training Programs

Operational Supplies

Books and Videos

Examples of Blocked Purchases
Cash Advances

Adult Entertainment

Tobacco Products

Cash Refunds

Controlled Substances
Alcoholic Beverages

Examples of Unauthorized Purchases

Any Personal Items or Use

Unbudgeted Items

Personal Service Contracts

Unsecured Internet Purchases — non-https:// sites
Trade Service Agreements

Purchase Requiring 1099 Form

Exceptions to the above may be granted by the District Director on a limited basis upon a
showing of sufficient justification or extenuating circumstances.

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board



C. Reconciling Accounts
Each transaction on the monthly billing statement is compared with receipts submitted by the
purchasing staff member and assigned an account number before being sent to the Accountant

for payment.

D. Paying the Bill

The LCLD credit card(s) will be paid in full each month after reconciliation with the receipts

E. Responsibilities

e The District Director will:

(e}

O 00000 0

(O3]

Provide administrative oversight for successful operation of the credit
card program

Ensure that appropriate procedures are in place and approve all special
procedure issues.

Update the credit card procedures for LCLD as needed

Verify that funds are budgeted for the transactions of LCLD cardholders
Review and audit credit card data and transactions.

Monitor cardholder compliance with LCLD rules

Reconcile the monthly billing statements to appropriate submitted
receipts

Monitor cardholder purchases during the month

Report lost, stolen or fraudulent use of the credit cards to the credit card
vendor.

e The Cardholder is responsible for:

O

Adopted:

Treating the LCLD credit card with the same care as they do with their
own personal credit cards. The card should be maintained in a secured
location and the account number should be carefully guarded.

Only the individual whose name appears on the face of the card is
entitled to use the card. The card shali not be loaned to another
individual for any reason.

Obtaining purchase documentation (sales receipt, itemized packing slip,
service receipt, etc.) from the merchant for every purchasing card
transaction to support the purchase. If someone other than the
cardholder receives the shipment or service, the cardholder is sill
responsible for obtaining the supporting documentation.

Receipts shall be given to the District Director who will reconcile the card
purchases to the monthly billing statement on a timely basis. Failure to
do so will result in a loss of cardholder privileges.

Working with the merchant to correct any problems, exchanges or
credits.

Not accepting cash in lieu of a credit card credit for returns.

Lincoln County Library District Board



o Reporting a lost or stolen card to the card issuer immediately. Also notify
the District Director as soon as possible.

o Returning the credit card to the District Director upon termination of
employment, upon change in employment that no longer requires a
credit card or upon request from the District Director or the Board

o Not misusing the credit card. Failure to comply with the Credit Card
policy and procedures and other LCLD policies that relate to purchases
will result in the revocation of purchasing card privileges. If the
purchasing card is used for unlawful or improper purposes, the employee
may also be subject to disciplinary action for that misconduct.

Vill. Personnel
Employment policies shall include procedures that reasonably protect LCLD assets:

A. Employment applications shall include:
¢ Astatement that false information or misrepresentation can be cause for
disqualification or dismissal.
e Acriminal background check with candidate’s written approval.
e Reference checks.

Appropriate staff supervision

Rotation of duties/cross-training.

Communication and confirmation of policies and ethics

Employee and financial contractor fidelity coverage (bonding) is required (when
applicable)

moow

F. Staff Reimbursement for Purchases
Staff members may occasionally need to purchase materials for the Library with their personal
funds. Staff may submit itemized receipts for these purchases to the Director and pending
Director and Board Approval a reimbursement check will be issued within 30 days.

G. Staff Reimbursement for Travel Expense
Employees will be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred in the performance of their work.
Any cost incurred should be the most economical with the Library's best interest.
Any employee of the Library incurring expenses for Library related business shall be reimbursed
as follows:
@ Official travel in privately owned vehicles shall be reimbursed in accordance with the rates as
set forth in the LCLD travel policies and procedures.
Air travel shall not be first class unless other rates are unavailable. Under reasonable
circumstances, or for necessary expediency, the Board may authorize other travel means.
@ Lodging shall be reimbursable at the actual expense. Receipts must be provided for all
lodging.

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board



Parking, tolls, and public transport shall be reimbursable at the actual expense. Receipts must
be provided for all parking, tolls and public transport.

@ Conference and registration fees shall be approved in advance by the District Director, and
may be prepaid when necessary and appropriate.

@ Use of rental vehicles is allowed when more feasible than other types of available
transportation.

@ The LCLD will reimburse an employee for meals at required training sessions. Oregon per
diem rates apply. All expenses should be reported on the Travel Expense Reimbursement Form
and submitted for Director and Board Approval.

B Other necessary expenses which were unforeseeable prior to travel may be approved by the
Board upon presentation of documentation of the need for such expense.

Expenses not in compliance with the travel expense policy will not be reimbursed or paid by the
Board, e.g. costs incurred by family members or staff attendance at events not approved by the
Director or the Board.

IX. District Assets and Capital Outlay

The District Director shall not allow assets to be unprotected, inadequately maintained, or

unnecessarily risked. Accordingly, s/he may not:

A. Fail to insure against theft and casualty losses to at least 80 percent of replacement
value and against liability losses.

Subject facilities to improper use or insufficient maintenance.

Unnecessarily expose the LCLD, its Board, or staff to claims of liability.

D. Make any purchase (1) contrary to state statutes and regulations concerning conflicts of
interest; (2) of over $500 without having obtained comparative prices and quality; (3) of
over $3,000 without evaluating a balance of long-term quality and cost. Such evaluation
shall be presented to the Board to use as they make their decision.

E. Fail to protect intellectual property, information, and files from loss or damage.

F. Receive, process, or disburse funds under insufficient controls to meet the Board-
appointed auditor's standards.

G. Fail to follow state law regarding investment of capital assets in secure instruments.

O

Capital outlay shall include expenditures on the following:
A. Land acquisition or improvement, including improvements and installations on the
grounds;
B. Building construction, expansion, or remodeling;
C. Installation, addition, or replacement of major building systems such as heating and
cooling, electrical, plumbing, and other services;
D. Shelving;

E. Depreciable equipment, which includes items that have an anticipated useful life
exceeding one year, cost $5,000 or more, retain their original shape and use, and are
nonexpendable.

Adopted:

Lincoln County Library District Board



Equipment, including nonexpendable equipment costing less than $5,000, must be inventoried.

X. Surplus Property

Surplus property is defined as any personal property of the LCLD that has been determined by
the District Director or designee as being of no use or value to the District. See the Surplus

Property Disposal Policy for details.

Adopted:
Lincoln County Library District Board






